
U.S. Department of Justice 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives Assignment and Report 

1. OPERATING NAME AND ADDRESS 
(INCLUDE ZIP CODE AND COUNTY) 

Damage Factory LLC 
6806 South Dallas Way 
Greenwood Village,CO 80112, Arapahoe 

2. U.I. NUMBER (ORG. SEG. CODE, ASSIGNMENT NO., P.P.C.) 
788070-2016-0241-B1B 

3. PERMIT/LICENSE NUMBER 
584005077K05862 

4a. TARGET DATE 
9/15/2016 

4b. TARGET HOURS 
40 

5. REQUESTED BY (SIGNATURE, TITLE AND DATE) 

6. ATF OFFICER(S) ASSIGNED 
-Assigned Investigator 

- Lead Investigator 
- Assigned Investigator 

(b)(6) 
(b)(6) 
(b)(6) 

7. ASSIGNED BY (SIGNATURE, TITLE AND DATE) 

(b)(6) , Area Supervisor, 05/10/2016 

8. PURPOSE/SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 

DE. Manufacturer Program. 100% inventory verification and 12 months ATF Forms 4473 review is required. A referral was received from 
Denver CGIC regarding suspicious and possible illegal activity as well as GCA diallaliolations. See intelligence report for details. 

9. INSPECTION RESULTS ❑ CHECK IF NO VIOLATIONS, ADJUSTMENTS, ETC 10. TRAVEL EXPENSES OPTIONAL) 
NO. OF VIOLATIONS 9 NO. OF REFERRALS 1 2111 - PER DIEM 

NO. OF TECS CHECKS 3 NO. OF TECS HITS 2112 - P.O.A. 

NO. OF TAX 
ADJUSTMENTS 

$ VALUE OF TAX INCREASES 2113 - COMM. AIR 

$ VALUE OF TAX DECREASES 2114 - RENTAL CAR 

NO. OF ASSESSMENTS $ VALUE OF ASSESSMENTS 2115 - GPV EXPENSES 

NO. OF CLAIMS $ VALUE OF CLAIMS 2116 - MISC. 

NO. OF TAX PERIODS $ VALUE OF TAXES VERIFIED TOTAL $ FOR INSP. 

11. ATF OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION 

Submitted by (b)(6) - Industry Operations Investigator 

Submitted on: 10/20/2016 

Viols WC with WL and Recall 

ATF OFFICER'S NAME (MONTH, YEAR, HOURS) 

12. TIME ACCOUNTING DATA 

(b)(6) 
SEP 2016 9.00 

ATF OFFICER'S SUBTOTAL 9.00 

ATF OFFICER'S NAME (MONTH, YEAR, HOURS) 

SEP 2016 51.50 
OCT 2016 3.00 

ATF OFFICER'S SIGNATURE 

(b)(6) 

ATF OFFICER'S SUBTOTAL 54.50 

ATF OFFICER'S NAME (MONTH, YEAR, HOURS) 

ATF OFFICER'S SIGNATURE 

(b)(6) 
SEP 2016 7.00 

ATF OFFICER'S SUBTOTAL 7.00 ATF OFFICER'S SIGNATURE 

TOTAL HOURS 70.50 

ATF EF 5700.14`('hlN) or cialeken34 
I uC '0 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives Assignment and Report 

1. OPERATING NAME AND ADDRESS 
(INCLUDE ZIP CODE AND COUNTY) 

Damage Factory LLC 
6806 South Dallas Way 
Greenwood Village,CO 80112, Arapahoe 

2. U.I. NUMBER (ORG. SEG. CODE, ASSIGNMENT NO., P.P.C.) 
788070-2016-0241-B1 B 

3. PERMIT/LICENSE NUMBER 
584005077K05862 

4a TARGET DATE 
9/15/2016 

4b. TARGET HOURS 
40 

5 REQUESTED BY (SIGNATURE, TITLE AND DATE) 

13. REVIEW AND ROUTING 

REVIEW COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATION 

iiThe licensee was cited for two violations that warrant any for of AA per ATF O 5370.1B. The licensee failed to properl mark firearms it further 
manufactured with its name, city and state oil occasions and the licensee failed to report multiple handgun sales on i occasions. Both of these 
violations warrant a warning conference as the minimum AA. However, the firearms that were further manufactured by e FFL were properly 
marked by the original manufacturer. Additionally, the failed multiple sales were attributed to the misidentification of the type of handgun in its 
system - therefore notification was not made for certain multiple sales. The licensee submitted the multiple sales immediately. This is a relatively 
high volume FFL (disposing approx(b)(4) firearms for the inspection period) that had no traces for the inspection period. A warning letter with recall 
is recommendacl. 

Viols WL ONLY and Recall Inspection 

[8] REVIEWED El CONCUR [g] SEE COMMENTS FINAL DISPOSITION 

SIGNATURE AND TITLE 
(b)(6) -Area Supervisor 

REVIEW DATE 
10/20/2016 

REVIEW COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Issuing a warning letter is lieu of holding a warning conference as an alternate recommendation is authorized. A recall inspection will be 
conducted. This is the licensee's first inspection since the license was issued in 2014. 

The licensee failed to complete! multiple sales reports involvinM firearms rising to a warning conference level_ In addition, the licensee failed 
to property mark ' 3' 1 firearms wi their manufacturer markings ( 

involving
City and State.) This also rises to a warning conference level. 

 1:.........:.... 14. I'  A 40A7 4-  A A. A f 4 ,107 4-  r  +- 44. A 
VLSI III 1./Ffl.,-.L.I.-01 U I 1,4, Ill I I .1 IV V WI L...J.1 •...,11 111.-P. I VII 

discrepancies in the A & D Record to included" missing firearms after reconciliation. This equals a 0.0% error rate for the acquisitions ana 
1.2% error rate for dispositions. This rises to a report of violation only for the current inspection. 

Further, other violations were cited. Concerning ATF Forms 4473 errors, the licensee failed to ensure the forms were properly completed in 
Sections A, B and a For the certification questions in Section A the errors equaled a 07% error rate, equaling a report of violations only. Further, 
the licensee failed to record valid and complete identification inj instances equaling a 2.2% error rate. 

A warning conference is not necessary to again explain how to complete multiple sales given the licensee knows of the requirement and has 
complied with other multiple sales reporting. Further, a warning conference is not necessary to again explain the violations, the corrective actions 
and how to properly mark firearms. This was discussed during the closing conference for the/ firearms not marked properly. 

The licensee is aware of the obligations. A warning letter will suffice to document the licensee may want to consider additional internal controls to 
prevent repeated violations to include property marking firearms and multiple sales violations. The warning letter will also document the RP needs 
to verify all ATF Forms 4473 are always properly completed. 

Note, a recall inspection will be conducted to ensure the licensee complies in the future. 

Viols WL ONLY and Recall Inspection 

REVIEWED CONCUR [8] FINAL DISPOSITION 

SIGNATURE AND TITLE 
PWBROWN - Director, Industry Operations 

ROUTING SEQUENCE AND DATE 

p 1. 
E 2  
❑ 3.  
El 4  

(b)(6) 
Peterson 
DN c (6/(61 o=ATF, 
ou separtrnent o Jusnce, 

REVIEW DATE 
10/20/2016 

Date: 201010.21 10-31:44 -06'00' 

CONTROL FILE POSTED DATE 

ATF EF 5700 14M-1$) orO 
icialfti3nIct P1 

 
.0 le 
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U.S.'  Department of Justice 
Bureau ut Alcohol, Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives Report of Violations 

Instructions Please write firmly with a ball point pen when completing this form. ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible representative. The remaining copies will be submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their files. 

Name of Proprietor 
Damage Factory LLC 

Street Address 

(1806 South Dallas Way 

City 

Greenwood Village 

State 

CO 

Zip Code 

80112- 

County 

Arapahoe 
Page I of 

6 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number (If any) 

584005077K05862 
Expiration Date 

10/1/2017 

Date(s) or Period of Inspection 

(191)6/2016 through 09/29/2016 

Inspection Results 
An examination of your premises, records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Number: I 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to properly mark each firearm manufactured by the licensee inflinstances. The licensee has failed to mark each firearm that has been manufactured as required by the regulations with its business name and city and state. 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.92(a)( I) 

Number: 2 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to record the disposition of each individual firearm to another licensee in the Acquisition and Disposition Record inlinstances. 

Citation: 27 C'FR 478.123(h) 

I or (gficual 

Date Corrections to be Made: 
(If not correc►ed immediately) 

Corrective Action to be Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Date Correctiom to be Made: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to be Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

43 

The licensee will adhere to ATF regulations moving forward 
for marking firearms upon manufacture. 

The licensee i r ediately corrected the disposition record 
for each of the irearms that were determined to have no 
disposition in error at the time of the inspection. The 
licensee has conducted training with his employees on this 
issue to ensure that this error does not occur again 

ATI L-Fonn 5030.5 

Ite%ised April 2005 
August 9 2019 Document Production 



U.S. Department of Justice 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives 

Report of Violations 

Instructions Please write firmly with a ball point pen when completing this form. ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible representative. The remaining copies will be submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their files. 

Name of Proprietor 
Damage Factory LLC 

Street Address 

6806 South Dallas Way 

City 

Greenwood Village 

State 

CO 

Zip Code 

80112- 

County 

Arapahoe 
Page 2 of 

6 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number (If any) 

584005077K05862 
Expiration Date 

10/1/2017 

Date(s) or Period of Inspection 

09/06/2016 through 09/29/2016 

Inspection Results 
An examination of your premises, records and ,Ivrat ions has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Number: 3 

Nature of Violation: 

ix) Failure to record the di sition of each individual firearm to nonlicensee in the Acquisition and Disposition Record in instances. 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.123(d) 

Date Corrections to be Made: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to he Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

The licensee immediately corrected the disposition record 
for each of the Illirearms that were determined to have no 
disposition in error at the time of the inspection. The 
licensee has also completed ATF Form 3310.1 I , Federal 

n
Firearms Licensee Firearms Inventory Theft/Loss Report 
and submitted it to the National Tracing Center. Thei 
items submitted on this report have been dispositio wit l
the ATF Incident Number The licensee 
has conducted training wit is employees on this issue to 
ensure that this error does not occur again 

For Official Use ()nl 

August 9 2019 Document Production 
44 ATF E-Fns 5030.5 
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US. Department of Justice 
Bureau of Alcohol. Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives Report of Violations 

Instructions 
Please write firmly with a ball point pen when completing this form ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will he given to the proprietor or a responsible representative. The remaining copies will be submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their tiles. 

Name of Proprietor 

Damage Factory LLC 
Street Address 

6806 South Dallas Way 

City 

Greenwood Village 

State 

CO 

Zip Code 

80112- 

County 

Arapahoe 
Page 3 of 

6 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number (If any) 

584005077K05862 
Expiration Date 

10/1/2017 

Datc(s) or Period of Inspection 

09/(6/2016 through 09/29/2016 

Inspection Results 
An examinatiu In of your premises. records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been expla ned to you: 

Number: 4 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to obtain and/or furnish all information required on each ATF Form 4473 as indicated 

on the form and the instructions on or nal bi 
(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 

a response 0 ccin a or a 
transferee failed to provide a response that would allow the firearm to he transferred. 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.2 l(a) 

Number: 5 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to obtain a properly completed 
over-the-counter transfer of a firear 
the licensee's premises is located oa 
coin leted item I or 2 h rovidin I k 

all 

.-

ATF Form 4473. Section A. prior to making an 
a non-licensee, who is a resident of the State in which 
orrns. The license failed to ensure that the transferee 

accurate name and/or address on the form 
(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)i6 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.124(O( I

Date Corrections to be Made: 
(If not corrected ownediately) 

Corrective Action to he Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Date Corrections to be Made: 
(If not corrected immediati 

Corrective Action to be Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time 
prior to filing to ensure that this error does not occur again, 
as well as conduct additional training with new employees to 
ensure their understanding of this issue. 

The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time 
prior to filing to ensure that this error does not occur again. 
as well as conduct additional training with new employees to 
ensure their understanding of this issue. 

fox Official lbw Only 

August 9 2019 Document Production 
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U.S. Department odJustice 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives Report of Violations 

Instructions 
Please write firmly with a ball point pen when completing this form. ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. Tie original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible
representative. The remaining copies will be submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their files. 

Name of Proprietor Street Address City State Zip Code County 
Page 4 of Damage Factory LLC 6806 South Dallas Way Greenwood Village CO 80112- Arapahoe 
6 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number any) 

5840(15077 K05862 

Expiration Date 

10/1/2017 

Datets) or Period of Inspection 

09/06/2016 through 09/29/2016 

Inspection Results 

An examination ‘our premises. records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Number: 6 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to document irplete information from government issued identification used to 
identify transferee onMforms. The licensee failed to obtain su elemental iywemment issued 

6O, 112 PutAlc La. a5125 STAT 5,52 1011r.l 
llocumentation to verify the transferee's residential address or orms 

(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 
(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.124(c83Xi) 

Number: 7 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to correctly identify the firearm to be transferred h'. listing the manufacturer. mixlel, 
serial number. tv and caliber or gauge of the firearm mai .1-1F Forms 4473 

he l icensee failed to complete an 
attachment with the required information for any firearms over the five allowed for on the form. 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.124(cX4) 

(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 

Date Corrections to be Made: 
(lf not corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to be Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Date Corrections 10 he Made: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to be Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time 
prior to filing to ensure that this error does not occur again, 
as well as conduct additional training with new employees to 
ensure their understanding of this issue. 

The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time 
prior to filing to ensure that this error does not occur again, 
as well as conduct additional training with new employees to 
ensure their understanding of this issue. 

Official Use Only 

August 9 2019 Document Production 
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Departzr.ent of Justice 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives 

Report of Violations 

Instructions Please write firmly with a ball point pen when completing this form. ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible representative. The remaining copies will be submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their files. 

Name of Proprietor 
Damage Factory LLC 

Street Address 

6806 South Dallas Way 
City 

Greenwood Village 
State 

CO 

Zip Code 

80112- 

Count) 

Arapahoe 
Pagc 5 of 

6 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number (If any) 

584005077K05862 
Expiration Date 

10/1/2017 
Datets) or Period of Inspection 

09/06/2016 through 09/29/2016 

Inspection Results 
An examination of your premises. records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Number: 8 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure to sign and/or date (Item 34 and/or 36) the ATF Form 4471 .A does roc kni w or haN. rea.on :th : -:rice In helie%e that It

` 3" (b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 
(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 

Citatiori. t • i ._-+t P 

Number: 9 

Nature of Violation: 
Failure of the licensee to prepare and submit a report of multiple sales or other disposition (ATF Form 3310.4) whenever the licensee sells or otherwise disposes of, two or more pistols, or revolvers. or any combination of pistols or revolvers totaling two or more to an unlicensed person at one time or durin any five consectit httsine%. 
F rearms 

'bX31 

(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 
(b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 

Date Corrections to he Made: 
Of not corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to he Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

Date Corrections to be Made: 
(linos corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to he Taken: 
(If not corrected immediately) 

The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time 
prior to filing to ensure that this error does not occur again. 
as well as conduct additional training with new employees to 
ensure their understanding of this issue. 

The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time 
prior to filing to ensure that this error does not occur again. 
as well as conduct additional training with new employees to 
ensure their understanding cf this issue. The licensee is also 
aware that it is their responsibility to correctly report these 
transfers regardless of the proper functioning of their 
computerized system. All previously missing forms were 
submitted by the close of business on the day the 
discrepancy was discovered (September 8. 2016). 

For rifficial Use 011ie 
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US. Departn:ent of Justice 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives 

Report of Violations 

Instructions Please write firmly with a ball point pen when completing this form. ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible representative. The remaining copies will be submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their files. 

Name of Proprietor 
Damage Factory LLC 

Street Address 

6806 South Dallas Way 

City 

Greenwood Village 

State 

CO 

Zip Code 

80112- 

County 

Arapahoe 
Page 6 of 

6 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number (If arty) 
584005077K05862 

Expiration Date 

10/1/2017 

Da:e(s) or Period o Inspection 

09J06/2016 through 09/29/2016 

Inspection Results 
An examination of your premises. records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

I Have Received a Copy9f-13, port iolatisay\--144nprieror's signature and tide) 

Signature and TN 

or Officul I ;.4: Oril) 

• U - " g•I 

akb 

i t (,k (  ( • Lttl 0 S Alves 

Date / 

9/; -q 

Date94 1-q 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 
Firearms and Explosives 

Denver Field Division 

October 21, 2016 

www.atfgov 

788070: 
5300 

Mr. Michael Estes 
Damage Factory LLC 
6806 South Dallas Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 80112 

Re: FFL# 5-84-005-07-7K-05862 

Mr. Estes: 

(b)(6) 

During a recent inspection at your firearms business covering the period from September 1, 2015 
to September 6, 2016 you were cited for violations of Title 27, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 
478. A copy of the Report of Violations, ATF F 5030.5, issued at the time of the inspection is 
enclosed. 

All violations were fully explained to you by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and 
Explosives (ATF) Industry Operations Investigator. You or your responsible person indicated 
that you understood the requirements of the firearms laws and regulations and corrective actions 
would be taken to eliminate future violations. 

The records you are required to maintain and the business operations you conduct are important 
to law enforcement in our continuing efforts to reduce violent crime and protect the public. It is 
essential that you comply with all Federal laws and regulations that govern your firearms 
business. This is critical to carrying out our mission to protect the public and to ensure that 
criminals do not gain access to firearms. ATF appreciates the efforts you and other industry 
members make in this area. We look forward to continuing to work with you in that regard. 

You are reminded that retention of your Federal firearms license is conditioned upon your 
compliance with Federal laws and regulations. Any future violations, either repeat or otherwise, 
could be viewed as willful and may result in the revocation of your license. Please ensure that 
future compliance is achieved. 

August 9 2019 Document Production 
49 



-2-

Mr. Michael Estes 
Damage Factory LLC 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact 
Supervisor at I b)(6) I. 

(b)(6) 
Area Supervisor Industry Operations 

cc: Federal Firearms Licensing Center 
Denver VI Field Office 

(b)(6) , Area 

August 9 2019 Document Production 
50 



FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Damage Factory LLC UI#: 788070-2016-0241-B1B 
Trade Name: FFL#: 5-84-005-07-7K-05862 

Address: 6806 South Dallas Way 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 80112 ARAPAHOE 

1 - Introduction 

Inspection Profile: 
On Se tember 6 2016 Industry Operations Investigators 

commenced the onsite portion of a Disposition 
Emphasis inspection at the premises. tion covered September 1, 
2015 — September 6, 2016. Investigatoi (b) (6) interviewed Kenneth Ong 
(Member and Responsible Person) and Michael Estes (Member and 
Responsible Person . Michael Estes was identified with Colorado Driver 
License Number ( b) (6) Advance notice was not given for this 
inspection. The inspection concluded on September 29, 2016. 

(b) (6) 
(b) (6) 

Business Profile: 
Damage Factory manufactures, buys, and sells new and used firearms to the 
general public and other FFLs. This licensee is a medium volume manufacturer 
that primarily deals with transfers to individuals as well as a medium volume 
retail business. The business operates from a commercial location in the city of 
Greenwood Village, Colorado. This licensee has been in business for 
approximately 2 years. The licensee does conduct business at gun shows 
periodically at this time. Damage Factory utilizes a website 
(www.damagefactory.com) to sell firearms, equipment and accessories. 
Damage Factory sells firearms, equipment and accessories. The licensee holds 
no other ATF licenses at this time. 

During the inspection period, t - - i se acquired approximatel 
and disposed of approximatel 4(b ) (4 ) irearms. Approximatel 
long guns. Approximatel (b) (4 )I f the firearms sold are new a 
by Damage Factory or obtained from other licensees. 

(b) (4) 
(b) (4) 

eanns 
ercent were 

manufactured 

The licensee is compliant with State and local laws and meets all zoning 
requirements. The licensee is not required to obtain any additional licenses or 
permits to operate within the city of Greenwood Village, Colorado. The 
licensee is in . ood standing with the Colorado Secret s to as verified by 
Investigator (b) (6) .n August 23, 2016. Investigato (b) (6) as queried 
NFORCE to determine that Mr. Yamasaki, Mr. Ong and Mr. Estes are not 
linked to any ongoing criminal investigations at this time. There is no off-site 
storage of firearms. 

Ownership and Control: 

Revised 7 1 15 Page 1 of 11 
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Damage Factory is licensed as a limited liability company. Mr. Ong and Mr. 
Estes, as well as Bryant Yamasaki are currently listed as the only responsible 
persons on the Federal Firearms License (FFL). Mr. Ong and Mr. Estes are 
responsible for a majority of the day to day decisions in regard to operations, 
policies and procedures for firearms related issues. There is no hidden 
ownership suspected. No additional responsible persons were identified during 
the inspection. 

Variance: 
The licensee does not hold any current variances and has not requested any 
additional variances as a result of this inspection. 

2 - Recommendation 
Violations, Warning Conference with Warning Letter and Recall Inspection 

3 - Inspection History 

Date of Inspection: 
Type of Inspection: 
UI#: 
Inspection Results: 
Cited Violations: 

September 4, 2014 
Qualification Inspection 
788070-2014-0294-B1B 
Application Approved 
None 

There is no further inspection history for this licensee. 

4 - Acquisition & D. n (A&D) Record - Inventory 
Inv -s tor(b) (6 onducted a full inventory. There werelffirearms in inventory 
an • pen entries in the A & D Record. Every firearm in the physical invent' was 
com d to the A & D record and from the A & D record to the firearms wit 
discrepancies disclosed. irearms were traced from acquisition through 
disposition and no additional discrepancies were noted. As a result of conducting a full 
inventory and discovering discrepancies, the following violations were cited: 

1. 27 CFR 478.123(b) — Failure to record the disposition of each individu 
firearm to another licensee in the Acquisition and Disposition Record i 
instances. See Section 13 — Violation 2 and Worksheet 1. The following 
methods were utilized to resolve the discrepancies that were discovered: 

• litf the discrepancies were resolved by reviewing receipts showing payment 
for the firearms by another licensee and shipping documentation showing items 
were shipped to the licensee as claimed by Mr. Estes; and 

• lEaf the firearms was returned to another licensee where it was purchased 
(CDNN), with this information verified by the other licensee. 

Narrative Reports for August 2019 Production 80 



2. 27 CFR 478.123(d) - Failure to record the disposition of eac ividual firearm 
to a nonlicensee in the Acquisition and Disposition Record i nstances. See 
Section 13 — Violation 3 and Worksheet 1. The following methods were 

• • d to resolve the discrepancies that were discovered: 
• f the discrepancies were resolved by reviewing the ATF Forms 4473, 

showed the transfer of the firearms (See Exhibit 2); and 
of the discrepancies was resolved by reporting the items as a loss on ATF 

Form 3310.11, Federal Firearms Licensee Firearms Inventory Theft/Loss Report 
(See Exhibit 9). 

55( 
i) 

Firearms are received and logged in by Mr. Estes or Mr. Ong. Firearms are sold and 
logged out b Mr. Estes, Mr. Ong or whichever employee completes the transaction. 
Investigato (b) (6) suggested that one individual log out all firearms or that one 
individual verify that the firearms have been logged out at the end of the business day. 

The computerized A & D record was found to be in the proper format, including all 
required information. There were no trafficking issues related to the A & D Record. 
No illegal firearms or firearms with obliterated serial numbers were discovered in 
inventory. There was no theft or loss reported during the inspection period. 

5 - ATF Forms 44 CS & Other Dispositions 
There wer TF Forms 4473 filed chronologically for this inspection period. All 
of the forms were reviewed and the following violations were disclosed: 

1. 27 CFR 478.21(a) - The licensee failed to obtain and/or furnish all information 
required on each ATF Form 4473 as inat by the headings on the form and 
the instructions on or pertaining to it o TF Forms 4473. See Section 13 
— Violation 4, Exhibit 3 and Worksheet 2. 

2. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(1) — The licensee failed to obtain a properly completed ATF 
Form 4473, Section A, prior to making an over-the-counter transfer of a firearm 
to a non-141w, who is a resident of the State in which the licensee's premises 
is located =orms. See Section 13—Violation 5, Exhibit 4 and 
Worksheet 2. 

3. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(3)(i) — The licensee failed to document complete 
• ill ation from government issued identification used to identify the transferee 

o orms. See Section 13 — Violation 6, Exhibit 5 and Worksheet 2. 
4. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(4) - Failure to correctly identify the firearm to be transferred 

by listing the manufacturer, model, serial number, type and caliber or gauge of 
the firearm TF Forms 4473. See Section 13 — Violation 7, Exhibit 6, 
and Worksheet 2. 

5. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(5) — The licensee failed to sign and/or date the ATF Form 
4473 when the licensee does not know or have a reasonable cause to believe that 
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the transferee is disqualified by law from receiving the firearm Informs. See 
Section 13 — Violation 8, Exhibit 7 and Worksheet 2. 

The licensee has their customers complete the ATF Form 4473 on a computer at the 
sales counter, then completes the CBI check and the remainder of the form prior to 
printing out the form for the signature of the transferee and the transferor. The forms 
are completed by whichever employee is completing the sales transaction. 

The licensee hadlIMIBl/NICS denials during the inspection period. The licensee 
understands how denials are to be properly filed and retained. The licensee did make 
several sales to a law enforcement officer, and expressed understanding of the correct 
procedure to transfer firearms to law enforcement officers for personal use and for duty 
weapon use. Transfers to other licensees were conducted properly and copies of each 
license were retained. 

The ATF Forms 4473 were reviewed for indicators oft . and repeat 
purchasers. No discrepancies were noted. Investigato (b) (6 ) -onducted an FFL audit 
log verification of 712 CBI/NICS transaction numbers and did not note any 
discrepancies. 

6 - Multiple Sales 
The licensee ha Enu sales for the inspection period. There weranreported 
multiple sales (involvin irearms) discovered during this inspection. The licensee 
has completed and submitted these reports as required. The following violation was 
disclosed during the review of forms: 

27 CFR 478.126a — The licensee failed to prepare and submit a report of multiple sales 
or other disposition (ATF Form 3310.4) whenever the licensee sells or otherwise 
disposes of two or more pistols, or revolvers, or any combination or pistols or revolvers 
totaling two or unlicensed person at one time or during any five consecutive 
business days o orms involvin rearms. See Section 13 — Violation 9, 
Exhibit 8 and Worksheet 2. 

7 - Suspicious/Pro rchasers 
Investigato (b) (16 i). id not identify any traffickers, straw purchasers, or prohibited 
people during this inspection period. Mr. Estes and Mr. Ong stated that they are 
observant in regard to situations that could lead to a straw purchase and have trained the 
employees accordingly. Criminal history checks were run on the responsible persons 
with no hits. No additional criminal history checks were conducted for this inspection. 

8 - Trace Activity 
There were no traces for the inspection period. There were no unsuccessful traces for 
this licensee. 
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This licensee has very few secondary market items in their inventory on a regular basis. 
They primarily deal in their own manufactured items and only occasionally buy any 
used firearms. Of thell used firearms currently in inventory, all were 
purchased from a regular customer (who then purchased a different item from them) or 
are in the store for gunsmith services. 

9 - NFA/Importer/Collector/Manufacturer 
The licensee does not import or collect firearms under this license. The licensee is a 
medium volume manufacturer. The licensee is current with filings of AMFER reports 
as required. The following violation was disclosed during the inspection: 

ail l27 CFR 478.92 a 1) —The licensee failed to properly mark each firearm manufactured 
by the license nstances. The licensee has failed to mark each firearm that has 
been manufacture as required by the regulations with its business name and city and 
state. The licensee understands their obligation to mark all firearms manufactured by 
them within 7 days upon completion of the manufacturing process. See Section 13 —
Violation 1, ROV 1 and Exhibit 1. 

The licensee is also a Special Occupation Taxpayer (SOT). The licensee currently 
holds 16 NFA items in its inventory, which coincides with information received from 
the National Firearms Registration and Transfer Record (NFRTR). 

10 - Referrals 

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C) 
11 - Other 

Damage Factory is in compliance with the Youth Handgun Safety Act, secure gun 
storage, and safety devices. No other notable issues were discovered during the course 
of this inspection. 

12 - Closing Actions 
On September 29, 2016 Investigator ( b ) (6) onducted a closing conference with Mr. 
Estes. Investigato ( b ) (6 ) reviewed and discussed the Acknowledgement of Federal 
Firearms Regulations with Mr. Estes. The Acknowledgement was signed and dated by 
Mr. Estes. See Exhibit 10. At the time of the closing, Mr. Estes was also provided a 
copy of the Open Letter to FFLs in reference to disposition of firearms inventory 
following surrender, revocation or expiration of license. 

13 - Violations 
I. 27 CFR 478.92(a)(1) 
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Nature of the violation: 
Failure to properly mark each firearm manufactured by the licensee "Instances. The 
licensee has failed to mark each firearm that has been manufactured as required by the 
regulations with its business name and city and state. 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated one of these firearm "is still being manufactured" and that he didn't 
understand it had to be marked if it wasn't completed, and that the other three were an 
oversight. The licensee understands their obligation to mark all firearms manufactured 
by them within 7 days upon completion of the manufacturing process. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will adhere to ATF regulations moving forward for marking firearms upon 
manufacture. These firearms are in inventory and the appropriate markings have been 
made to the firearms prior to the conclusion of the inspection. Specifically, the licensee 
was made aware of the deficiency on September 6, 2016 and given a •1 of 
September 12, 2016, to complete the required markings. Investigato ti; (6 ) observed 
that the required markings were completed at the closing conference on September 29, 
2016. 

See ROV 1, and Exhibit 1. 

2. 27 CFR 478.123(b) 

Nature of the violation: 
litFailure to record the disposition of e • dividual firearm to another licensee in the 

Acquisition and Disposition Record stances. 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that he believes it was due to an error in operation of their new 
computerized record keeping system. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee immediately corrected the disposition record for each of t 'rearms that 
were determined to have no disposition in error at the time of the inspection. The 
licensee has conducted training with his employees on this issue to ensure that this error 
does not occur again. 

See ROV 2, and Worksheet 1. 

3. 27 CFR 478.123(d) 

Nature of the violation: 
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iFailure to record the disposition of e individual firearm to nonlicensee in the 
Acquisition and Disposition Record f nstances. 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that this was an oversight and that he believes it was due to having 
several new employees in the last year. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee immediately corrected the disposition record for each of th irearms 
that were determined to have no disposition in error at the time of the inspection. The 
licensee has also completed ATF Form 3310.11, Federal Firearms Licensee Firea 
Inventory Theft/Loss Report, and submitted it to the National Tracing Center. The 
• • on this report have been dispositioned with ATF Incident 

he licensee has conducted training with his employees on this issue to 
ensure that this error does not occur again. 

See ROV 3, Exhibit 2 and Worksheet 1. 

4. 27 CFR 478.21(a) 

Nature of the violation: 
Failure to obtain and/or furnish all information required on each ATF Form 4473 as 
indicated by the t 1 

ATF Forms 4473 
1 .  Ili ••II . 1 1 I - I SI , II - . 1 f • 

b3 Public Law 112-55 (125 Stat. 552) 
b3 Public Law 112-55 (125 St at. 552) 

GI 

The licensee failed to ensure that the transferee provided a 
response to Item 11a, or that the transferee failed to provide a response that would allow 
the firearm to be transferred. 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that this was an oversight and that he believes it was due to having 
several new employees in the last year. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time prior to filing to ensure that 
this error does not occur again, as well as conduct additional training with new 
employees to ensure their understanding of this issue. 

See ROV 4, Exhibit 3 and Worksheet 2. 

5. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(1) 

Nature of the violation: 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Damage Factory LLC UI#: 788070-2016-0241-B1B 
Trade Name: FHA 5-84-005-07-7K-05862 

Failure to obtain a properly completed ATF Form 4473, Section A, prior to making an 
over-the-counter transfer of a firearm to *censee, who is a resident of the State in 

112-55,125 SLY 

which the licensee's premises is located 552r 
 orms. The license failed to ensure that 

the transferee completed item 1 or 2 by providing a complete and accurate name and/or 
address on the form 3 Public Law 112-55 (125 Stat. 552 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that he believes these instances were simply an oversight on the part 
of the employee completing the form. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time prior to filing to ensure that 
this error does not occur again, as well as conduct additional training with new 
employees to ensure their understanding of this issue. 

See ROV 5, Worksheet 2 and Exhibit 4. 

6. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(3)(i) 

Nature of the violation: 
Failure to document co - to information from government issued identification used 
to identify transferee e"'= orms. The licensee failed to obtain supplemental 
government issued documentation to ven the transferee's residential address and 
document this on Item 20b o .rms (b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

Licensee's response: 
The license stated that they did not understand that they should document the 
supplemental documentation reviewed in these cases. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time prior to filing to ensure that 
this error does not occur again, as well as conduct additional training with new 
employees to ensure their understanding of this issue. 

See ROV 6, Exhibit 5 and Worksheet 2. 

7. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(4) 

Nature of the violation: 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Damage Factory LLC UI#: 788070-2016-0241-B1B 
Trade Name: FHA 5-84-005-07-7K-05862 

Failure to correctly identify the firearm to be transferred by listing the manufacturer 
model, serial number i.e and caliber or _. au e of the firearm in Items 26-30 o _ , 
ATF Forms 4473 (b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

• 

The licensee failed to complete an attachment with the required information (for Items 
b Pudle 

26-30) for any firearms over th 7 llowed for on the form. 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that he believes these instances were simply an oversight on the part 
of the employee completing the form. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time prior to filing to ensure that 
this error does not occur again, as well as conduct additional training with new 
employees to ensure their understanding of this issue. 

See ROV 7, Exhibit 6 and Worksheet 2 

8. 
27 CFR 478.124(c)(5) 

Nature of the violation: 
Failure to sign and/or date (Item 34 and/or 36) the ATF Form 4473 when the licensee 
does not know or have reasonab e to believe that the transferee is dis • ualified by 

(b)(3) - 1 12 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) law from receivin. the firearm 

(b)(3) - 112 Publ ic Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that he believes these instances were simply an oversight on the part 
of the employee completing the form. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time prior to filing to ensure that 
this error does not occur again, as well as conduct additional training with new 
employees to ensure their understanding of this issue. 

See ROV 8, Exhibit 7 and Worksheet 2 
9. 

27 CFR 478.126a 

Nature of the violation: 
Failure of the licensee to prepare and submit a report of multiple sales or other 
disposition (ATF Form 3310.4) whenever the licensee sells or otherwise disposes of, 
two or more pistols, or revolvers, or any combination of pistols or revolvers totaling two 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

4. Exhibit 4: ATF Forms 4473 in support of Violation 5 
112 La. 5, 125 521 552, 

5. E I II it 5: ATF Fonns 4473 in su ort of Violation 6 

Name: Damage Factory LLC UI#: 788070-2016-0241-B1B 
Trade Name: FFL#: 5-84-005-07-7K-05862 

or more to an unlicensed person at one time or durin. an five consecutive business 
da 5 I12-E5,125 rms involvi 

112,f5i125 (b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 'rearms 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

Licensee's response: 
The licensee stated that this was due to inadequate knowledge of their computerized 
record system. The system will not alert the user of a situation in which a multiple sale 
form may be required unless the type is listed as pistol or revolver, and the licensee was 
routinely listing these as only "handgun" until approximately May of 2016. 

Corrective action: 
The licensee will review ATF Forms 4473 a second time prior to filing to ensure that 
this error does not occur again, as well as conduct additional training with new 
employees to ensure their understanding of this issue. The licensee is also aware that it 
is their responsibility to correctly report these transfers regardless of the proper 
functioning of their computerized system. All previously missing forms were submitted 
by the close of business on the day the discrepancy was discovered (September 8, 
2016). 

See ROV 9, Exhibit 8 and Worksheet 2 

(b) (6) 
Industry Operations Investigator 

Index of Worksheets and Exhibits 
1. Exhibit 1: Pictures of firearms in support of Violation 1 - 27 CFR 478.92 a 1 
2. Exhibit 2: ATF Forms 4473 in su 1 1 ort of Violation 3 

(bx3)- 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 
3 112 Pubic Law 55 125 Stat 552 (b)(6) 

3. Exhibit 3: ATF Fonns 4473 in su ort of Violation 4 
(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law a 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

8. Exhibit 8: ATF Fonns 4473 in su 

Name: Damage Factory LLC UI#: 788070-2016-0241-B1B 
Trade Name: FFL#: 5-84-005-07-7K-05862 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 
6. Exhibit 6: ATF Forms 4473 in su ort of Violation 7 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

7. Exhibit 7: ATF Forms 4473 in su ort of Violation 8 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 
• •ort of Violation 9tu"' " u"' LOWoo I'oiai ooz,

(b)(6)

(b)(3) - 112 Public Law 55 125 Stat 552, (b)(6) 
9. Exhibit 9: ATF Form 3310. 

Public L aw 
• a 

12- 
•
55 (1 5 12) 

Licensee Firearms Inventory 
b3 1 2 Stat • 55

Theft/Loss Report — Inciden 
10. Exhibit 10: Acknowledgement of Federal Firearms Regulations 
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